
MINUTES 
CITY OF NORCO 

SPECIAL MEETING – STUDY SESSION 
CITY COUNCIL 

CONFERENCE ROOMS “A” & “B” 
NORCO CITY HALL – 2870 CLARK AVENUE 

OCTOBER 11, 2010 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Miller called the meeting to order at 1:06 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL:    Mayor Malcolm Miller, Present 
       Mayor Pro Tem Berwin Hanna, Present 
       Council Member Kathy Azevedo, Present 
       Council Member Kevin Bash, Present 
  Council Member Harvey C. Sullivan, Present (Arrived 

at 1:48 p.m.) 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Council Member Azevedo 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS: 
 
Greg Newton.  Mr. Newton commented on the City-wide cleanup at California Avenue and 
North Drive, and also asked that the Council consider replacing the boulders on North Drive with 
a monument sign, as this is one of the entrances to the City.  
 
5. STUDY SESSION ITEMS: 
 

A. Overview from the City Manager 
 

City Manager Groves stated that the presentations are built on previous discussions held and 
noted that no actions will be taken at this meeting.   
 

B. Update on the Norco Animal Shelter Facility Project. 
 
Parks, Recreation & Community Services Director Petree commented on the work that City 
staff has done to put this project together and complimented them on their efforts.  A 
presentation was given highlighting the general conditions of the existing Norco Animal Shelter 
and the need for an improved facility.  Renovation of the existing facility to the north has the 
advantage of being the most economical and efficient solution, as it will expand into the area 
owned by the City and no insurmountable conflicts are known within the site elements. The only 
disadvantage is a minor grade differential.  The proposed exterior elevation, floor plan and 
exterior elevation were presented noting that the actual total for the additional area to the facility 
totals 2,500 square feet, a net increase of 1,000 square feet to the common 
areas/restrooms/breakroom, and 1,500 square feet to the kennels.  The total project cost in the 
cost estimate is approximately $1.5 million, which is a cost savings of about $1 million, and is 
expected to go out to bid in December of 2010. 
 
The City Council Members stated concerns regarding the functionality of the facility and the 
reduced size of the facility compared to the original design.  Director Petree stated that staff 
believes that this plan is fully functional and workable, with additional space for expansion in the 



City Council Special Meeting – Study Session Minutes 
Page 2  
October 11, 2010 
 
 
future.  He also noted that during construction, they will be able to maintain functions in the 
existing space.  The revised Norco Animal Shelter Project will be presented to the City Council 
at its meeting held on October 20, 2010.   
 

C. Budget Options: 
 
  1) Norco Sheriff’s Department 
  
Lt. Cooper presented current 2010 staffing numbers without motors, along with details on two 
other options.  The first option detailed minimum staffing from City Hall and second option 
detailed minimum staffing from the Jurupa Valley Station (presentation attached hereto and 
incorporated herein).  Lt. Cooper recommended the option detailing minimum staffing from City 
Hall. 
 
The City Council Members voiced concerns regarding the safety of Norco residents if major cuts 
are made.  Comments were also provided regarding the location of Sheriff Substations within the 
County of Riverside.  Lt. Cooper stated that Norco’s current facility is not large enough to be a 
Sheriff Substation.  Mayor Miller stated that this is going to be a really difficult challenge.  
 
Vern Showalter.  Mr. Showalter noted that getting rid of one of the motor officers was a big 
mistake and asked if the City could bring one back.  Lt. Cooper stated that motor officers are 
limited in functionality and there is a need for a deputy in a black and white.   
 
RECESS:  Mayor Miller recessed the Council at 2:46 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE: Mayor Miller reconvened the meeting at 2:57 p.m. 
 
  2) Parks, Recreation & Community Services Department 
 
Director Petree stated that the presentation Station (presentation attached hereto and 
incorporated herein) details a concept to develop Cost Centers by combining and reorganizing 
programs and services.  The Cost Centers would accurately reflect the cost of operations and 
administration costs that could properly be allocated to the benefiting Cost Center.  The 
proposed Cost Centers were presented by divisions in the Parks, Recreation and Community 
Service Department.  In summary, there would be an approximate expenditure savings of 
$385,247 and approximate additional revenues of $133,445, with a net budget impact of 
$518.692.     
 
City Manager Groves stated that the projections are based on solid data and by creating the 
Cost Centers, it could change the way we do business.   
 
The City Council Members commented on the work that staff did to put this plan together for 
Cost Centers and noted that this is the direction the City needs to go.  
 
Vern Showalter.  Mr. Showalter stated that this is the first time he saw the City try to run as a 
business and cautioned the Council to not cut staff to the point that it cannot be run.  



City Council Special Meeting – Study Session Minutes 
Page 3  
October 11, 2010 
 
 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the City Council, 

Mayor Miller adjourned the meeting at 3:41 p.m. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
BRENDA K. JACOBS 

CITY CLERK 
 
/bj-76675 
Attachments 
 


